
 
 
Agenda – September 20, 2022                                                                                                                                          -1-    

22450 19th Avenue South, Des Moines WA  98198 (Meeting Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  The District’s meetings are hybrid (remote and in-person) due to COVID-19. See the information above to join a meeting.  If you 
have any questions, please contact Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk, 206.429.3852. 

 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

October 25, 2022 
7:00 p.m.  

Special “Hybrid*” Meeting (MRHS Library) 
  

*Meetings are being held remotely using Zoom and in-person at the Mount Rainier High School Library 
(22450 19th Avenue So. – Second floor).  If you wish to listen in, please do so at 1-253-215-8782 Meeting ID: 
857 6677 1469 Passcode: 582910.  Any questions or comments should be directed to Lauryne Thurmond, 
District Clerk at (206) 429-3852 or by email at lauryne.thurmond@desmoinespool.org. Public comments will 
be due by email to info@mtrainierpool.com by noon on the day of each meeting. This is due to the hybrid 
format of the meetings. 

 AGENDA 
 

7:00  1. CALL TO ORDER ROLL CALL  

7:01 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

7:03 3. ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA  

7:04 4. ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS  
  

7:05 5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please Limit to Three [3] Minutes)  
Remote Meeting: If you wish to make public comment, please submit in writing via email to
info@mtrainierpool.com by Noon on Tuesday, October 25th. Please include your name, address 
and contact phone number. All timely submitted public comments will be read at the meeting 
subject to the time limit. Any public comments received after noon, will be read at the following 
regular meeting. 

7:06 6. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. EXPENDITURE/REVENUE SUMMARY JULY 
b. STAFF/CONTRACTOR/COMMITTEE REPORTS  

  District General Manager Report 
c. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

September 13, 2022 
September 20, 2022 

d. CORRESPONDENCE 
 None 

e. BANK TRANSFERS (MRP REVENUE) 
f. VOUCHER APPROVAL 

$82,792.85 was processed in _September_ for warrant requests 
g. KING COUNTY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS (EXPENSES)  

  $72,669.08 was processed in _September_ for payroll 
 

 



   
 
Agenda – October 25, 2022  -2- 

22450 19th Avenue South, Des Moines WA  98198 (Meeting Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  The District’s meetings are hybrid (remote and in-person) due to COVID-19. See the information above to join a meeting.  If you 
have any questions, please contact Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk, 206.429.3852. 

 

  
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

7:10 a. HSD Lease Update 
 

 8. OLD BUSINESS 

7:20 

7:35 

7:45 

7:55 

8:00 

a. Aquatics Manager Q3 Report  

b. Proposed Employee Pay & Bonuses 

c. Proposed 2023 Rates & Fees 

d. Proposed Finance and Administration Changes 

e. 2023 Proposed Budget and Estimated Levy (Working Draft) 

 9. New Business 

8:15 

8:20 

8:25 

a. SEEK Grant Report 

b. End of State of Emergency 

c. Aquatic Feasibility Study Update 

 8. UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

a. November 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location MRHS Library 
b. December 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location MRHS Library 

 
 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 

 

 













































 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  The District’s regular meetings are being held remotely due to COVID-19. See the information above to join a meeting.  If you 
have any questions, please contact Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk, 206.429.3852. 

 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

September 13, 2022 
7:00 p.m.  

Hybrid (MRHS Library and Remote Online) 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
President Young called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. Also, present were Commissioners Dusenbury, Achziger and 
Campbell; District General Manager Deschenes; Aquatics Manager Knox; District Clerk and Coordinator Thurmond. 
(Note-Meeting started 10 minutes late due to access issues with Mount Rainier High School.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Dusenbury led the flag salute. 
 
ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA – DGM Deschenes requested the addition of 8f Future Meetings under 
New Business. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – MRP Received another $5,000 in additional funds 
toward the SEEK grant to cover extra equipment for SEEK Swim Grant and Scholarship swim equipment to reduce 
barriers for low-income swimmers.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
Executive Session Business 
 
6a. Executive Session 
President Young moved to go into Executive Session pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (1)(b) to consider the lease of real 
property. The Executive Session will be for 5 minutes until 7:15pm.  
No motion needed at this time. 
 
7a. Master Plan Narrative Review 
This is a fourth touch item that has been reviewed by Capital and Contracts on August 2 and 9. Presentation can be 
found in the Special Meeting Packet. The hope is to bring a final draft to the September 20th regular board meeting. 
No motion needed, as this is only the narrative and the full Master Plan will be approved at a later time.  
 
7b. 2022-2023 Programming 
2022 will be the first year, since Covid-19 that the district will have uninterrupted programming. The presentation 
can be found attached in the special board meeting packet with an outline for 2023 to better utilize resources, 
marketing, and communications. Commissioners requested the cost to run lessons for an entire quarter to better 
prepare documentation for future Grants. No motion needed, informational only. 
 
7c. Staffing Plan 



2 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park 
District Meeting Minutes – 9/13/2022 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address)

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is following COVID-19 guidelines and Proclamation 20-28 and will hold meetings remotely until 
further notice.  The public may join meetings through the GoToMeeting app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact 
Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk at lauryne.thurmond@desmoinespool.org if you have questions.

Over the past couple of years, there has been a national lifeguard shortage with many pools having to cut back their 
services and increase benefits to match private organizations. Presentation can be found in the special board meeting 
packet with information on issues and recommendations from staff on how to counteract them in the hopes of 
increasing staffing capacity. Commissioners requested job descriptions for proposed new positions. No motion 
needed, informational only. 

7d. Budget 
The District GM updated the board on upcoming benchmarks for 2023 budget preparation including minimum wage, 
preliminary levy estimates, preliminary plan for future budget meetings and other data. Presentation can be found 
in the special meeting packet. No motion needed, informational only. 

7e. Office Move/Admin Changes 
The District GM gave an update on moving items from the district office and potential administration changes that 
affect the move. The DGM met with the Finance committee on September 2nd, the presentation attached in the 
special meeting packet contains suggestions from the DGM on the process. No motion needed, informational only. 

7f. Addition – Future Planning 
DGM informed that effective October 31, 2022, the governor will remove the Covid-19 state of emergency with 
potential future board meeting changes. All Fall 2022 meetings will be at the MRHS Library, this is contingent upon 
the district agreeing and pricing, which is part of the HSD Lease Agreement that is currently being negotiated. No 
motion needed, informational only. It was also discussed about trying to keep grant funding for future swim lessons. 
Commissioners agreed to further pursue SEEK grant funding, Commissioner Achziger will meet with Legacy and bring 
a plan to the board. 

ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business the meeting was adjourned at 8:45pm. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 September 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (MRHS Library and Online)
 October 18, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (MRHS Library and Online)
 November 8, 2022, Board Retreat, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (MRHS Library and Online)
 November 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (MRHS Library and Online)

Respectfully submitted by Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk. 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners  

Commissioner Young Commissioner Dusenbury 

Commissioner Campbell Commissioner Stender 



 
3 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes – 8/16/2022 
 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is following COVID-19 guidelines and Proclamation 20-28 and will hold meetings remotely until 
further notice.  The public may join meetings through the GoToMeeting app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact 
Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk at lauryne.thurmond@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

Commissioner Achziger  Lauryne Thurmond, District Clerk  
 



























AQUATICS MANAGER’S QUARTERLY REPORT – WINTER 2022 
 
OVERALL VISITATION REPORT (QUARTER 1 MONTHLY REPORT 2022) 

July August September 
2622 4183 3527 

 
DAILY AND MONTHLY BREAKDOWN 
In the future, we plan to break water exercise out on admissions and reports. 
 
July 

  
Admissions 
(POS + 
Members) 

  
Spectator 
Area 

Deck 

HS Swim 

HS Meet Total Daily 

1 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
2 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
3 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 

4 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 

5 8 5 3 N/A N/A 16 
6 97 46 11 N/A N/A 154 
7 92 25 14 N/A N/A 131 
8 137 36 43 N/A N/A 216 
9 68 42 9 N/A N/A 119 

10 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
11 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
12 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
13 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
14 103 39 31 N/A N/A 173 
15 133 14 18 N/A N/A 178 
16 64 19 4 N/A N/A 87 
17 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
18 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
19 108 63 20 N/A N/A 191 
20 111 72 65 N/A N/A 242 
21 120 49 12 N/A N/A 181 
22 84 28 69 N/A N/A 181 
23 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
24 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
25 79 59 17 N/A N/A 155 
26 137 20 22 N/A N/A 179 
27 114 33 19 N/A N/A 175 
28 81 16 32 N/A N/A 129 



29 116 24 25 N/A N/A 165 
30 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
31 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 

Total:      2622 
 
 
August 

  
Admissions 
(POS + 
Members) 

  
Spectator 
Area 

Deck 

HS Swim 

HS Meet 
Total 
Daily 

1 141 64 14 N/A N/A 219 
2 65 42 31 N/A N/A 138 
3 126 72 22 N/A N/A 220 
4 81 48 33 N/A N/A 162 
5 122 19 8 N/A N/A 149 
6 78 43 7 N/A N/A 128 
7 119 62 27 N/A N/A 208 
8 72 33 24 N/A N/A 129 
9 114 55 9 N/A N/A 178 

10 109 36 25 N/A N/A 170 
11 96 11 18 N/A N/A 125 
12 66 32 16 N/A N/A 114 
13 136 51 15 N/A N/A 202 

14 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 

15 136 51 15 N/A N/A 202 
16 76 50 8 N/A N/A 134 
17 108 43 18 N/A N/A 169 
18 85 44 13 N/A N/A 142 
19 63 16 5 N/A N/A 84 
20 40 11 3 N/A N/A 54 
21 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
22 103 22 10 N/A N/A 135 
23 122 19 22 N/A N/A 163 
24 146 54 62 N/A N/A 262 
25 128 45 28 N/A N/A 201 
26 90 5 10 N/A N/A 105 
27 72 44 15 N/A N/A 131 
28 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 
29 26 1 20 32 N/A 79 
30 41 3 20 61 N/A 125 



31 97 5 11 46 N/A 159 
Total      4183 

 
 
 
September 

  
Admissions 
(POS + 
Members) 

  
Spectator 
Area 

Deck 

SMAC HS Swim 

HS Meet 
Total 
Daily 

1 30 0 4 0 51 N/A 85 
2 55 1 9 0 44 N/A 109 
3 50 23 14  0 0 N/A 87 
4 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 
5 29 2 2 0 29 N/A 62 
6 38 3 5 0 23 N/A 59 
7 40 2 0 0 55 N/A 97 
8 30 0 0 0 0 248 278 
9 51 15 28 0 26 N/A 120 

10 19 5 0 0 0 N/A 24 
11 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 
12 30 21 1 76 50 N/A 178 
13 86 6 5 58 0 N/A 155 
14 31 12 3 65 5 N/A 116 
15 29 1 7 20 44 N/A 101 
16 71 7 11 51 32 N/A 172 
17 53 15 12 36 0 N/A 116 
18 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 
19 52 29 1 71 59 N/A 212 
20 82 51 15 18 0 35 201 
21 84 13 24 72 0 N/A 193 
22 24 0 0 32 46 N/A 102 
23 43 0 0 0 0 N/A 43 
24 52 12 20 0 0 N/A 84 
25 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 
26 53 2 2 89 54 N/A 200 
27 50 4 14 33 218 N/A 319 
28 12 0 0 0 29 N/A 41 
29 105 7 25 20 26 N/A 183 
30 91 5 10 0 25 N/A 131 

Totals       3527 
 
 



SWIM LESSON PARTICIPATION 
 
This report is for July 1 – September 31 2022. At this time we offered Monday Afternoons (4:30-7pm) and 
Saturday Mornings (8-11:15am): All 30 minutes with 10 minutes in-between for cleaning, communication and 
social distancing. 
 
Saturdays, July 9 - September 3 

GROUP 
LESSONS 

Instructors 
Available During 

This Time* 

# of Group 
Classes 

Offered* 

Total Served 
(Max 5 Per 

Class*) 

Waitlist 
Participants 

% of Capacity 
(No Privates)* 

Parent/Child 1 1 10/10 0 100% 
8:00am 4 4 19/20 0 95% 
8:40am 4 3 16/15 0 100+% 
9:20am 4 4 18/20 0 90% 
10:00am 4 4 20/20 0 100% 
10:40am 3 3 13/15 0 87% 
Totals 4 (avg) 21 96/100 0 96% 

*Class overfilled due to extra instructors. 

Monday-Thurs, July 5 - July 14  
GROUP 

LESSONS 
Instructors 

Available During 
This Time* 

# of Group 
Classes 

Offered* 

Total Served 
(Max 5 Per 

Class*) 

Waitlist 
Participants 

% of Capacity 
(No Privates)* 

9:30am 4 4 19/20 0 95% 
10:00am 4 4 20/20 0 100% 
10:30am 4 4 19/20 0 95% 
11:00am 4 4 20/20 0 100% 
Totals 4 (avg) 16 78/80  97.5% 

 
Monday-Thurs, July 18 - July 28  

GROUP 
LESSONS 

Instructors 
Available During 

This Time* 

# of Group 
Classes 

Offered* 

Total Served 
(Max 5 Per 

Class*) 

Waitlist 
Participants 

% of Capacity 
(No Privates)* 

Parent/Child 1 1 5/10 0 50% 
9:30am 4 4 20/20 0 100% 
10:00am 4 4 20/20 0 100% 
10:30am 4 4 19/20 0 95% 
11:00am 4 4 20/20 0 100% 
2:10pm  2 1 5/5  100% 
Totals 4 (avg) 18 89/95  94% 

 
 
Monday-Thurs, August 1 - August 11  

GROUP 
LESSONS 

Instructors 
Available During 

This Time* 

# of Group 
Classes 

Offered* 

Total Served 
(Max 5 Per 

Class*) 

Waitlist 
Participants 

% of Capacity 
(No Privates)* 

Parent/Child 1 1 5/10  50% 
9:30am 4 4 20/20  100% 



10:00am 4 4 19/20  95% 
10:30am 4 4 20/20  100% 
11:00am 4 4 19/20  95% 
2:10pm  3 2 15/15  100% 
Totals 4 (avg) 19 93/100  93% 

 
Monday-Thurs, August 15 - August 25  

GROUP 
LESSONS 

Instructors 
Available During 

This Time* 

# of Group 
Classes 

Offered* 

Total Served 
(Max 5 Per 

Class*) 

Waitlist 
Participants 

% of Capacity 
(No Privates)* 

Parent/Child 1 1 2/10  20% 
9:30am 4 4 19/20  95% 
10:00am 4 4 19/20  95% 
10:30am 4 4 18/20  90% 
11:00am 4 4 18/20  90% 
2:10pm  3 2 9/10  90% 
Totals 4 (avg) 19 85/100  85% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS- Spooky Swim (10/29)  
 
PROMOTIONAL DAYS: None during this time. 
 
Overview of Pool Operations:  
 



   
Staffing: 
 
Programming Notes: 

 General: We have seen consistency with staying open and general growth in our numbers since 
restrictions have been lifted. We have been planning and preparing for programming for Fall and early 
next year. We have hired 4 lifeguards since our Fall session has started.  

 Swim Lessons: Weekday lessons will return in early January 
 Camp Kahos: 

July 5 – July 14: 16 participants 
July 18 - July 28: 21 participants 
August 1 – August 11: 19 participants 
August 15 - August 25: 24 participants 
 

 Scholarship Information: Gave 54,313 in SEEK grant scholarships and reviewing scholarship program 
from January 2023. 

 Private Party Rentals: Reinstate after community parties 
 PTSA Swims: Will be in Q4 report 
 Maintenance 

1. Aquatic Specialty Services- Monthly service (ongoing), continued bi-weekly backwashing and 
weekly strainer basket cleaning. 

 
 Repairs/ Installs: 

     Gutter Cleaning – We are scheduling the gutter cleaning in the next couple of weeks. (ADD INFO) 
 Plumber Repair – We have some leaks in the pump room that have developed over the months. They 

are not big now, but if left unchecked could create larger issues. We are looking at a four plus hour 
closure. We are trying to see if we can get the repair completed the Friday or Saturday after 
Thanksgiving. 

 Door Repair – The door to the mechanical room by the men’s locker room entrance is off its hinges. 
Quentin is working to get the door hinges replaced, which will require removing the broken bolts and 
potentially redrilling the hinges into the frame. 

 Indoor Air Quality – We had some smoke smell in the facility on Wednesday morning. Luckily it 
dissipated before we opened. As this looks like something that will become an annual issue, we are 
looking at an indoor air quality monitor. We feel this will help with patrons and staff’s confidence even 
if there is a smell. The air handler’s filters, which were just replaced should filter all harmful air. 

 Sidewalk Crack Repairs – Jared is working on filling gaps in the concrete in the sidewalk. He is 
concentrating on three areas: the walkway from the handicap parking, the main path to the parking 
lot, and the sidewalk ramp from the circular drive. These cracks are mostly from gaps developing from 
widening spaces. There are some roots that are pushing the concrete up that will not be fixed, but 
would require some larger repouring of concrete or shaving of areas, which both will be costly. 

 Marketing Update 
Coming  
 

Marketing Objectives to enhance our Mission: 
 Promote swimming as a lifelong and lifesaving skill, along with the importance of knowledge of how to be 

safe in, on and around the water through programming. 
 Increasing opportunities for all community members to utilize Mt. Rainier Pool, regardless of age, 

swimming skill, and economic status. 



 Creating and promoting programming that will enable public to use Mt. Rainier Pool from a young child 
through adulthood. 

 Ensuring opportunities for teens/ young adults as a safe place to socialize and better their skills and 
knowledge of the water. 

 Creating partnerships with other agencies in our community to offer opportunities for better access to our 
facility. 

 
 



10/20/2022

1

October 18th Board 
Meeting
QUARTER 3 REPORT

Q3 swim lessons

 Mon-Thurs lessons: Offered 72 swim lesson classes from July-August.

 Sat lessons: Offered 21 swim lesson classes from July-September.

WRPA Conference

Received contact info with:

 Enumclaw Pool

 Lake Stevens High School Pool

 Henry Moses Aquatic Center/Park

 City of Wenatchee

 Pullman Pool
 Covington Aquatic Center

Pete Dequincy speech

 Prevention (tracking how many times patron are given or shown how to wear a life 
jacket)

 Safety (life jackets for unsupervised areas of water)

 Trainings (record a log of passes/fails)

 Staff Retention (have a 4-6 year lifeguard step plan so staff know what management 
expects out of them)

1

2

3



10/20/2022

2

Swim Lessons

Challenges for winter (Jan-Mar)

 Winter sports (staff availability)

 SMAC pool space

 Instructors available 

 Lifeguards available

Solutions

Mon/Wed (4 weeks on and 1 week off)

 Instructors (2-3 for weekdays and 4-5 in summer)

 Resident priority

Staff

 Instructor challenges (not enough people with necessary swimming 
capability)

 Winter sports 

 Adult vs Youth

 Schedule Flexibility 

 Remove interactive calendar

4

5











Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Position

Grade 1* 13.38 13.91 14.47 15.05 15.65 16.28 Asst. (15  Year Old Position)
Min Wage Rate 15.74 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2023 Minimum Wage Level

Grade 2 17.38 18.08 18.80 19.55 20.33 21.15 Lifeguard TPT
Grade 3 18.60 19.34 20.11 20.92 21.76 22.63 Swim Instructor
Grade 4 19.90 20.69 21.52 22.38 23.28 24.21 Water Exercise/Lifeguard PPT
Grade 5 21.29 22.14 23.03 23.95 24.91 25.90 Head Lifeguard
Grade 6 22.78 23.69 24.64 25.63 26.65 27.72 Lead Head Lifeguard
Grade 7 24.38 25.35 26.37 27.42 28.52 29.66
Grade 8 26.08 27.13 28.21 29.34 30.51 31.73
Grade 9 27.91 29.03 30.19 31.39 32.65 33.96
Grade 10 29.86 31.06 32.30 33.59 34.93 36.33
Grade 11 31.95 33.23 34.56 35.94 37.38 38.88 Aquatics Coordinators/District Clerk
Grade 12 34.19 35.56 36.98 38.46 40.00 41.60
Grade 13 36.58 38.05 39.57 41.15 42.80 44.51
Grade 14 39.14 40.71 42.34 44.03 45.79 47.62 Aquatics Manager
Grade 15 41.88 43.56 45.30 47.11 49.00 50.96

District GM. - Negotiation with District Board.

* Grade 1 is below minimum wage. Only for 15 years of age for Assistant positions for training.

Bonus/Incentives (Being Reviewed)
*  WSI and LGI Certified Instructors get $.50/hour for lifeguarding.
*  Early Morning Guards (Before 8:00am) get $1.00/hour.
*  Friday Night Guards (3pm to Close) get $2.00/hour.

*  Grade separations of 7% and Step separations of 4% represent best practices for public sector 
salary matrixes

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District
 2023 Proposed Salary Matrix

Salary Matrix Notes

*  Each salary grades 2 thur 15 are separated by 7% 
*  Each salary steps A thur F are separated by 4% , most salary matrix plans assumes the employee 
will begin at "Step A" when hired and with a satisfactory performance evaluations be advanced to 
the next step annually until reaching "Step F"at the competion of five years of tenure with the 
District. 



































10/19/2022

1

2023 Budget 
and Levy

October 18, 2022, Regular 
Board Meeting

Budget Sheet

Columns
• % Used thru August 31 – 66% (8/12)

• % Change b/w 22 & 23

• 2022 Budget

• 2023 Budget

• Notes

Expense Changes

• Payroll Changes w/ New Positions - Yellow

• Benefit Changes – Green

• Pool Chemicals – Light Blue

• Financial Services – Red

• Utilities – Blue

• Aquatic Feasibility Study - Orange

1

2

3



10/19/2022

2

Revenue Changes

• Estimated OTC Revenue –
Includes additional lane 
rental revenue

• Interest – Higher interest 
rates in 2023 (Broken out)

• Grants - $100k for Aquatic 
Feasibility Study

Overall

• $.20060/1,000
• Similar to 2022

• Should trend to under $.20/1,000 by end of year

• About ¼ of monies available

• Staffing should create more services = more 
revenue, but conservative revenue estimates

Questions

October 18, 2022, Regular Board Meeting

4

5

6













10/19/2022

1

The typical 
respondent:
• Makes $75k-

$100k
• Owns their 

own home
• Has 2 children 

at home.

1

2

3



10/19/2022

2

Overall, 31% of 
respondents 
report their 
children have 
never gotten 
swim lessons 
before.

Respondents 
who reported 
the children had 
received swim 
lessons before 
were asked to 
rate their skill 
levels on various 
swim skills.

Spanish and 
Vietnamese are the 
leading languages 
interested in swim 
lesson translation.

Most people 
interested in adult 
swim lessons speak 
English.

4

5

6



10/19/2022

3

• 96% of Original Grant 

Final Steps

Complete Report – Due 
October 31
• Invoice Details
• Answer Questions

1
Payment will be received 
before end of year
• Total estimated - $78,288

2

7

8

9





 1

DES MOINES POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - 05 
 

LIFTING  DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY - COVID-19 

WHEREAS: On April 21, 2020 the Board of Commissioners approved Resolution 2020-03 
Declaring an Emergency based on impacts of Covid-19; and 

WHEREAS: On September 8, 2022 the Governor of the State of Washington announced that he 
would lift the statewide Covid-19 State of Emergency effective October 31, 2022;  

WHEREAS: The Board of Commissioners has determined that it is appropriate to remain 
consistent with the State of Washington and lift the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
State of Emergency effective October 31, 2022. 

Resolution: NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District that: 

1. It is hereby declared that there is no longer a need to operate the District under the Covid-
19 Declaration of Emergency. 

2. The State of Emergency within the District shall be lifted effective 12:01 a.m. October 31, 
2022. 

Adoption: ADOPTED at an open public meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Des Moines 
Pool Metropolitan Park District on Tuesday, October 25, 2022 the following Commissioners being 
present and voting: 
 
 
 
     
    Commissioner 
 
    
   Commissioner 
 
    
   Commissioner 
 
    
   Commissioner 
 
    
   Commissioner 

 







 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:   9c       Assigned to:  District GM   Meeting Date:  10/25/22 
 
Under:    New Business                       Attachment:       Yes   
 

Subject: Aquatic Feasibility Study Update  
 
Background/Summary:  
Both the Feasibility/Project Grant Agreement with King County and Task Order 
03/Comprehensive Assessment and Feasibility Study with Stemper were fully signed on 
Wednesday, October 19. Both agreements are attached. 
 
The next step is having the preliminary testing setup for November. Stemper’s goal is to have 
this completed before Thanksgiving. This testing will require a closure of 8/9 hours. We will need 
to provide a couple of optional dates for them to come out. To minimize impacts on 
programming we will try to schedule it on a swim meet that is away from the pool, or early in the 
mornings. 
 
One continuing issue is that we have not performed a land survey. I have reached out to the 
school district, and I am awaiting a response. Stemper has notified me that if there is not a 
current land survey, we will have to have one performed. This was not in the feasibility study 
estimate and could be around $10,000. 
 
Finally, due to the delays with the grant coming out later than scheduled. The study is estimated 
to be completed in Spring of 2023, although this is dependent on no other delays. 
 
There is no motion as both agreements were passed at previous meetings. This presentation is 
to inform the board and inform the public of the final agreement. 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion: No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes      X  _     No_______ Date:  _Various______ 
 
Two Touch Rule:          N/A              Committee Review  
    ____10/25/22__________ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ____N/A             Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted _______        Rejected ______         Postponed _______ 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  ___No _______ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- Feasibility/Project Grant Agreement w/ King County (signed) 
- Task Order 03/Comprehensive Assessment and Feasibility Study w/ Stemper (signed) 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 

AQUATIC FACILITIES PROGRAM 

FEASIBILITY/PLANNING PROJECT GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

Department/Division: Natural Resources and Parks   /   Parks and Recreation 

Grant Recipient: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District

Project: MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study 

Award Amount: $100,000.00   Project#:  1144468 Contract#: 6328641 

Term Period:     To 11/30/2024 
 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is a grant agreement entered into between Des Moines Pool Metropolitan 
Park District  (�Grant Recipient�) and King County (the �County�) (collectively the �Parties�) 
for planning and feasibility study (�Feasibility Study�) for the development or improvement of a 
publicly owned pool (�Aquatics Recreation Project�) using a Parks Aquatic Facilities Program 
Grant. 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. Ordinance 18890, which took effect May 13, 2019, called for a special election to 

authorize the King County parks, recreation trails and open space levy.  On August 6, 
2019, King County voters approved the levy, which included funding for development 
and improvement of publicly owned pools.  
 

B. Motion 15378, Section A.4., and Attachment D, further delineated the use of levy funds 
for the Parks Aquatic Facilities Grants Program and the guidelines governing that use. 
 

C. Ordinance 19166, Attachment C established the grant award criteria and the process for 
the distribution of Parks Aquatic Facilities Grants as well as the proposed composition of 
an advisory committee to review and make recommendations on the grant awards. 

 
D. King County, a home rule charter county and political subdivision of the State of 

Washington, is King County is authorized to administer the Parks Aquatic Facilities 
Grant Program and enter into agreements for the use of the grant funds with King County 
towns, cities, metropolitan parks districts, and other public entities that own an aquatic 
facility for capital projects for the development or improvement of publicly owned pools. 

 
E. Grant Recipient is a Metropolitan Park District. 

 
F. The Parks Aquatic Facilities Grant Program Advisory Committee has 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
recommended an allocation of levy grant funds to specific projects, 
pursuant to Ordinance 19433. 

 
G. King County has selected Grant Recipient to receive a Parks Aquatic 

Facilities Grant award in the amount of $100,000.00 (�Grant Award 
Funds�) in order to conduct a feasibility study for the development or 
improvement of a publicly owned pool.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, and other provisions set forth 
in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

GRANT AWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Project. The term �Project� means the Feasibility Study described in Exhibit A for 
an Aquatics Recreation Project. Grant Award Funds available pursuant to this 
Agreement may only be used for the Project. To complete the Project, Grant 
Recipient shall use the Grant Award Funds to conduct the study, as set forth in 
Exhibit B, consistent with the requirements set forth in this Agreement and in the 
following attached exhibits, which are incorporated herein by reference: 

 Scope of Work   Attached hereto as Exhibit A 

 Project Budget Attached hereto as Exhibit B 

 Insurance Requirements  Attached hereto as Exhibit C 

1.2 Scope of Work.  Grant Recipient shall provide a scope of work (�Scope of Work�), 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, which describes the Project in detail and includes a 
description of the feasibility study milestones required for completion of the Project 
and intended use of the Grant Award Funds. Grant Recipient shall apply the funds 
received from the County for the Project under this Agreement in accordance with 
the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Exhibit A.   

1.3 Project Budget.  Grant Recipient shall work with King County to develop a Project 
Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit B. King County shall provide the Grant Award 
Funds to the Grant Recipient to pay for costs and expenditures related to the 
Project, as set forth in Exhibits A and B. Grant Award Funds provided to Grant 
Recipient may only be used to pay for costs and expenditures related to the Project, 
as set forth in Exhibits A and B.  

1.4 Contractor.  �Contractor� shall include any contractor or consultant hired by Grant 
Recipient, including any of the contractor�s or consultant�s subcontractors or 
subconsultants. 

2. EFFECTIVE DATE 

The Agreement shall be effective upon signature by both Parties (�Effective Date�).  



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
3. TERM 

The term (�Term�) of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and end on 
11/30/2024. This Agreement shall remain in effect until such time as it is amended in 
writing or terminated as provided herein.   

4. AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement together with the attached exhibits expressly incorporated herein by 
reference and attached hereto shall constitute the whole Agreement between the Parties.  
This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument, in writing, duly executed by the 
Parties. Either party may request changes to this Agreement, however, changes that deviate 
substantially from the proposal submitted to and approved by the Advisory Committee and 
the King County Council will need to be approved by those entities.   

5. NOTICES  

 Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all notices or documentation required or 
provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be in electronic form and shall be deemed duly 
given when received at the addresses first set forth below via electronic mail.   

KING COUNTY  Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Butch Lovelace Scott Deschenes 
Program Manager, Community 
Investments District General Manager 
King County Parks  Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
201 S Jackson Street Suite #5702 22722 19 Avenue S  
Seattle, WA 98104  Des Moines, WA 98198 
206-477-4577 206-429-3852 
butch.lovelace@kingcounty.gov  scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org

Either Party hereto may, at any time, by giving ten (10) days written notice to the other 
Party to designate any other address in substitution of the foregoing address to which 
such notice or communication shall be given. 

6. DISBURSEMENT OF GRANT FUNDS 

6.1 The County may authorize, at County�s sole discretion, release of a portion of the 
Grant Award Funds to Grant Recipient, upon execution of this Agreement, and 
receipt of Grant Recipient�s County-approved completed Scope of Work and 
Project Budget (see Section 1 and Exhibits A and B). 

6.2 The County shall initiate authorization for payment and disbursement of Grant 
Award Funds after approval of sufficiently detailed Project-related invoices 
submitted by Grant Recipient.  The County shall make payment to Grant Recipient 
not more than thirty (30) days after a complete and accurate invoice and any other 
required documentation is received and approved. 

6.3 Grant Recipient shall submit the final invoice, supporting documentation and any 
outstanding deliverables, as specified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and Project 
Budget (Exhibit B), within thirty (30) days of the date this Agreement expires or is 
terminated.  If the Grant Recipient�s final invoice, supporting documentation and 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
reports are not submitted by the day specified in this subsection, the County will be 
relieved of all liability for payment to Grant Recipient of the amounts set forth in 
said invoice or any subsequent invoice. 

7. GRANT REPORTING 

All Grant Award Funds received pursuant to this Agreement and accrued interest 
therefrom will be accounted for separately from all other Grant Recipient accounts and 
moneys. Until the Project is completed, and all proceeds provided pursuant to this 
Agreement have been expended, the Grant Recipient shall provide reports to the King 
County Project Manager on a schedule determined by the County. 

8. COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT  

Grant Recipient shall complete the Project described in Section 1.1 and Exhibits A and 
B of this Agreement. If Grant Recipient cannot complete the Project, as specified by the 
Scope of Work and deliverables set forth in Exhibit A, the County shall be released from 
any obligation to fund the Project, and the County in its sole discretion may reallocate 
such funds for other projects in other jurisdictions.  

Pursuant to Section 19, Termination, this Agreement will be terminated if the Grant 
Recipient is unable or unwilling to expend the Grant Award Funds for the Project as 
provided in this Agreement.  The Grant Recipient may not redirect Grant Award Funds 
for a purpose other than completion of the Project as approved by the Advisory 
Committee and King County Council.  

9. COMMUNICATION AND KING COUNTY MILESTONE NOTIFICATION 

 Grant Recipient shall recognize County as a �grant sponsor� for the Project in the 
following manner: 

9.1 Events: Grant Recipient shall invite and recognize �King County Parks� at all 
events promoting the Project, and at the final Project dedication.  

9.2 Community Relations: Grant Recipient shall recognize �King County Parks� as a 
�grant sponsor� in all social media, websites, brochures, banners, posters, press 
releases, and other promotional material related to the Project. 

9.3 King County Parks Notification: Grant Recipient shall notify the King County 
Parks Project Manager 30 days prior to any major milestone, such as a 
groundbreaking or opening dates. 

9.4 King County Council Notification: If Grant Recipient is a city or town notification 
to the King County Council 30 days prior to any major milestone, such as a 
groundbreaking or opening dates is required. 

9.5 Signage: Grant Recipient shall recognize �King County Parks� on any signage as a 
funder/contributor of project/facility. Grant Recipient is required to use appropriate 
King County logo on any signage and communications.  

 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
10. DISPOSITION OF REMAINING GRANT AWARD FUNDS  

If Grant Recipient does not expend all proceeds obligated to be provided through this 
Agreement, such proceeds, if held by Grant Recipient, shall be refunded to the County. For 
purposes of this section, �proceeds� shall include all Grant Award Funds obligated to be 
provided by the County plus interest accrued by Grant Recipient on the grant funds. Any 
proceeds in excess of those required to be provided by the County for the actual costs of 
the Project shall remain with the County for use in its sole discretion. 

11. PUBLIC ACCESS AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

The Grant Award is provided to Grant Recipient for the Project for the purpose of land 
protection and recreation for the citizens of King County.  Therefore, Grant Recipient and 
any successor in interest agree that the Feasibility Study is for an Aquatics Recreation 
Project for use by the public, as required by Ordinances 18890 and 19166.  The final 
Aquatics Recreation Project shall be open and accessible to the public at reasonable hours 
and times.  The public shall be notified of the availability of use by posting and updating 
that information on its website and by maintaining at entrances and/or other locations 
openly visible signs with such information. Fees for use of the Aquatics Recreation 
Project shall be no greater than those generally charged by public operators of similar 
facilities in King County.   

Notwithstanding temporary closure for required maintenance or repairs, the minimum 
period of time the Aquatics Recreation Project must be available for public use is thirty 
(30) years. Upon completion of construction of the Aquatics Recreation Project a 
restrictive covenant agreement specifying the public use requirements and other funding 
restrictions on the Aquatics Recreation Project shall be recorded. 

12. INSURANCE 

12.1 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  

Grant Recipient shall maintain, and/or require its Contractor(s) to maintain the 
minimum scope and limits of insurance as required in Exhibit C � Insurance 
Requirements.  

13. INTERNAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 

 Grant Recipient shall establish and maintain a system of accounting and internal controls 
which complies with applicable, generally accepted accounting principles, and 
governmental accounting and financial reporting standards in accordance with Revised 
Code of Washington (RCW) Chapter 40.14.   

14. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 

14.1 Grant Recipient shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial, Project records, including Agreement deliverables, and other such records 
as may be deemed necessary by the County to ensure proper accounting for all Grant 
Award Funds and compliance with this Agreement. 

14.2 These records shall be maintained for a period of six (6) years after the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Agreement unless permission to destroy them is granted 
by the Office of the Archivist in accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14. 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
14.3 Grant Recipient shall inform the County in writing of the location, if different from 

the Grant Recipient address listed in Section 5 of this Agreement of the aforesaid 
books, records, documents, and other evidence and shall notify the County in writing 
of any changes in location within ten (10) working days of any such relocation. 

15. RIGHT TO INSPECT   

 King County reserves the right to review and approve the performance of Grant Recipient 
with regard to this Agreement, and, at its sole discretion, to inspect or audit the Grant 
Recipient�s records regarding this Agreement and the Project upon seventy-two (72) hours� 
notice during normal business hours.  

16. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 Grant Recipient shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations in 
using funds provided by the County, including, without limitation, those relating to 
providing a safe working environment to employees and, specifically, the requirements of 
the Washington Industrial Safety and Health Act (WISHA); and, to the extent applicable, 
those related to �public works,� payment of prevailing wages, and competitive bidding of 
contracts. The Grant Recipient specifically agrees to comply and pay all costs associated 
with achieving such compliance without notice from King County; and further agrees that 
King County, does not waive this Section by giving notice of demand for compliance in 
any instance.  The Grant Recipient shall indemnify and defend the County should it be 
sued or made the subject of an administrative investigation or hearing for a violation of 
such laws related to this Agreement. 

17. CORRECTIVE ACTION 

17.1 If the County determines that a breach of contract has occurred or does not 
approve of the Grant Recipient�s performance, it will give the Grant Recipient 
written notification of unacceptable performance.  Grant Recipient will then take 
corrective action within a reasonable period of time, as may be defined by King 
County in its sole discretion in its written notification to Grant Recipient. 

17.2 King County may withhold any payment owed Grant Recipient until the County is 
satisfied that corrective action has been taken or completed. 

18. TERMINATION 

18.1 King County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, with or without 
cause, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, by providing Grant 
Recipient ten (10) days advance written notice of the termination. 

18.2 If the termination results from acts or omissions of Grant Recipient, including but 
not limited to misappropriation, nonperformance of required services, or fiscal 
mismanagement, Grant Recipient shall return to the County immediately any 
funds, misappropriated or unexpended, which have been paid to Grant Recipient 
by the County. 

18.3 Any King County obligations under this Agreement beyond the current 
appropriation biennium are conditioned upon the County Council's appropriation 
of sufficient funds to support such obligations.  If the Council does not approve 
such appropriation, then this Agreement will terminate automatically at the close 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
of the current appropriation biennium. 

18.4 The Agreement will be terminated if the Grant Recipient is unable or unwilling to 
expend the Grant Award Funds as specified in Section 1 and Exhibits A and B, or 
upon reimbursement by the Grant Recipient to the County of all unexpended proceeds 
provided by the County pursuant to this Agreement and payment of all amounts due 
pursuant to Section 6.  

19. FUTURE SUPPORT; UTILITIES AND SERVICE 

 The County makes no commitment to support the services contracted for herein and 
assumes no obligation for future support of the Project or the Aquatics Recreation Project 
except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Grant Recipient understands, 
acknowledges, and agrees that the County shall not be liable to pay for or to provide any 
utilities or services in connection with the future Aquatics Recreation Project unless 
specifically contracted for in another agreement. 

20. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 Grant Recipient shall protect, indemnify, and save harmless the County, its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, costs, and/or losses 
whatsoever occurring or resulting from (1) Grant Recipient�s failure to pay any such 
compensation, wages, benefits, or taxes, and/or (2) work, services, materials, or supplies 
performed or provided by Grant Recipient�s employees or other suppliers in connection 
with or support of the performance of this Agreement. 

Grant Recipient further agrees that it is financially responsible for and will repay the 
County all indicated amounts following an audit exception which occurs due to the 
negligence, intentional act, and/or failure, for any reason, to comply with the terms of this 
Agreement by the Grant Recipient, its officers, employees, agents, representatives, or 
subcontractors.  This duty to repay the County shall not be diminished or extinguished by 
the expiration or prior termination of the Agreement. 

Grant Recipient agrees for itself, its successors, and assigns, to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless King County, its appointed and elected officials, and employees from and 
against liability for all claims, demands, suits, and judgments, including costs of defense 
thereof, for injury to persons, death, or property damage which is caused by, arises out of, 
or is incidental to any use of or occurrence on the Project that is the subject of this 
Agreement, or Grant Recipient�s exercise of rights and privileges granted by this 
Agreement, except to the extent of the County's sole negligence.  Grant Recipient�s 
obligations under this Section shall include: 

A. The duty to promptly accept tender of defense and provide defense to the County at 
the Grant Recipient�s own expense; 

B. Indemnification of claims made by Grant Recipient�s employees or agents; and 

C. Waiver of Grant Recipient�s immunity under the industrial insurance provisions of 
Title 51 RCW, but only to the extent necessary to indemnify King County, which 
waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties. 

 
In the event it is necessary for the County to incur attorney's fees, legal expenses or other 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
costs to enforce the provisions of this Section, all such fees, expenses and costs shall be 
recoverable from the Grant Recipient. 

In the event it is determined that RCW 4.24.115 applies to this Agreement, the Grant 
Recipient agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and save the County, its officers, officials, 
employees and agents from any and all claims, demands, suits, penalties, losses damages 
judgments, or costs of any kind whatsoever for bodily injury to persons or damage to 
property (hereinafter "claims"), arising out of or in any way resulting from the Grant 
Recipient�s officers, employees, agents and/or subcontractors of all tiers, acts or 
omissions, performance of failure to perform the rights and privileges granted under this 
Agreement, to the maximum extent permitted by law or as defined by RCW 4.24.115, as 
now enacted or hereafter amended. 

 A hold harmless provision to protect King County similar to this provision shall be 
included in all Agreements or subcontractor Agreements entered into by Grant Recipient 
in conjunction with this Agreement. Grant Recipient�s duties under this Section 20 
will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

21. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 King County Code (�KCC�) chapters 12.16, 12.17 through 12.18 apply to this Agreement 
and are incorporated by this reference as if fully set forth herein.  In all hiring or 
employment made possible or resulting from this Agreement, there shall be no 
discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, 
color, marital status, national origin, religious affiliation, disability, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or expression or age except minimum age and retirement provisions, 
unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification.  

22. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 KCC Chapter 3.04 (Employee Code of Ethics) is incorporated by reference as if fully set 
forth hence, and Grant Recipient agrees to abide by all conditions of said chapter.  Failure 
by Grant Recipient to comply with any requirement of said KCC Chapter shall be a 
material breach of contract. 

23. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED 

 None of the funds, materials, property, or services provided directly or indirectly under 
this Agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or 
defeat of any candidate for public office. 

24. PROJECT MAINTENANCE; EQUIPMENT PURCHASE, MAINTENANCE, AND 
OWNERSHIP 

A. As between the County and Grant Recipient, Grant Recipient shall be responsible to 
operate and maintain the completed Project at its own sole expense and risk.  Grant 
Recipient understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the County is not responsible to 
operate or to maintain the Project in any way. 

B. Grant Recipient shall be responsible for all property purchased pursuant to this 
Agreement, including the proper care and maintenance of any equipment. 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
C. Grant Recipient shall establish and maintain inventory records and transaction 

documents (purchase requisitions, packing slips, invoices, receipts) of equipment and 
materials purchased with Grant Award Funds. Grant Recipient�s duties under this 
Section 24 shall survive the expiration of this Agreement. 

25. ASSIGNMENT 

 Grant Recipient shall not assign any portion of rights and obligations under this 
Agreement or transfer or assign any claim arising pursuant to this Agreement without the 
written consent of the County.  Grant Recipient must seek such consent in writing not 
less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of any proposed assignment. 

26. WAIVER OF BREACH OR DEFAULT 

 Waiver of breach of any provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of 
the Agreement unless stated to be such through written approval by the County, which 
shall be attached to the original Agreement. Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to 
be a waiver of any subsequent defaults. 

27. TAXES   

 Grant Recipient agrees to pay on a current basis all taxes or assessments levied on its 
activities and property, including, without limitation, any leasehold excise tax due under 
RCW Chapter 82.29A; PROVIDED, however, that nothing contained herein will modify 
the right of the Grant Recipient to contest any such tax, and Grant Recipient shall not be 
deemed to be in default as long as it will, in good faith, be contesting the validity or amount 
of any such taxes.  

28. WASHINGTON LAW CONTROLLING; WHERE ACTIONS BROUGHT 

This Agreement is made in and will be in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington, which will be controlling in any dispute that arises hereunder.  Actions 
pertaining to this Agreement will be brought in King County Superior Court, King County, 
Washington. 

29. PUBLIC DOCUMENT 

 This Agreement will be considered a public document and will be available for inspection 
and copying by the public.  

30. LEGAL RELATIONS   

 Nothing contained herein will make, or be deemed to make, County and Grant Recipient a 
partner of one another, and this Agreement will not be construed as creating a partnership 
or joint venture. Nothing in this Agreement will create, or be deemed to create, any right, 
duty or obligation in any person or entity not a party to it. 

31. PERMITS AND LICENSES   

 Grant Recipient shall develop and run the Project in accordance will all applicable laws 
and regulatory requirements including environmental considerations, permitting 
determinations, and other legal requirements.  All activities and improvements shall be 
performed by Grant Recipient at its sole expense and liability.  Grant Recipient shall, at its 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
sole cost and expense, apply for, obtain and comply with all necessary permits, licenses 
and approvals required for the Project, 

32. INTERPRETATION OF COUNTY RULES AND REGULATIONS   

 If there is any question regarding the interpretation of any County rule or regulation, the 
County decision will govern and will be binding upon the Grant Recipient.  

33. ENTIRE AGREEMENT   

 This Agreement, including its attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement between the 
County and Grant Recipient. It supersedes all other agreements and understandings 
between them, whether written, oral or otherwise.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the first date 
written. 
 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District   King County 
 
By___________________________________ By_________________________________ 
 
Title _______________________________  Title _____________________________ 
 
Date _________________________________ Date _______________________________ 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
Exhibit A- Scope of Work 

 
 

Levy Grants 

Aquatic Facilities Grant 

Scope of Work 

The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District will lead comprehensive site assessment and
aquatic feasibility study for Mount Rainier Pool to determine future usage, its ability to update
to current standards ( ADA), and potentially be more inclusive. We conducted a feasibility study
for a new pool but do not believe voters would approve a bond issue any time soon. We now
want to determine what possibilities exist to upgrade the existing 45 year old facility and, in the
process, expand our capacity to provide swim lessons. Any modernization will necessitate
Americans With Disabilities Act upgrades and more efficient use of the existing facility (better
water access, locker rooms, and gender neutral restrooms).

Activities/Milestones Estimated
Completion

Date  
Deliverables

1 
Evaluation of previous studies

10/7/22
Completed Feasibility

Study

2
Community engagement and analysis of needs

11/15/22

3
Identification of potential options/sites

01/17/23

4
Financial and funding analysis

02/21/23

5
Development of alternatives

03/21/23



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
Exhibit B- Project Budget 

 
Organization and Project Name: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District - 
MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study 

Project Tasks Project Costs 
Grant       

Request 

Feasibility/Planning  

 Architectural Services (Main Contractor: Stemper 
Architects) 

$37,835 $37,212 

 Mechanical Engineer/Plumbing (Tres West 
Engineering) 

$18,700 $18,700 

 Electrical Engineer (NG Jacobson) $9,900 $9,900 

 Civil Engineer (Jacobson Consulting Services) $14,817 $14,817 

 Building Envelope (Weatherholt) $19,371 $19,371 

 Hazardous Materials (PBS) $5,495 $0 

 Cost Estimator (DWS) $17,424 $0 

Other   

 Contingency $0 $0 

 Tax (Included in Project Costs) N/A $0 

 Project Management (Max 15% of grant) $0 $0 

TOTALS  $137,842 $100,000 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
Exhibit C- Insurance Requirements 

 
 
1. Insurance Requirements  

1. Grant Recipient shall purchase and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, the 
minimum insurance set forth below.  By requiring such minimum insurance, the 
County does not and shall not be deemed or construed to have assessed the risks that 
may be applicable to Grant Recipient, or any Contractor under this Agreement, or in 
any way limit the County�s potential recovery to insurance limits required 
hereunder.  To the contrary, this Agreement�s insurance requirements may not in any 
way be construed as limiting any potential liability to the County or the County�s 
potential recovery from Grant Recipient.  Grant Recipient and any Contractor shall 
assess their own risks and if they deem appropriate and/or prudent, maintain greater 
limits and/or broader coverage.  

2. Nothing contained within these insurance requirements shall be deemed to limit 
the scope, application and/or limits of the coverage afforded, which coverage shall 
apply to each insured to the full extent provided by the terms and conditions of the 
policy(s).  Nothing contained within this provision shall affect and/or alter the 
application of any other provision contained within this Agreement.  

  
3. Each insurance policy shall be written on an �occurrence� basis; excepting 
insurance for Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions), and/or Pollution 
Liability, and/or Cyber Liability (Technology Errors and Omissions).  These 
coverages required by this Agreement may be written on a �claims made� basis.  
  
If coverage is approved and purchased on a �claims made� basis, the coverage 
provided under that insurance shall be maintained through:  (i) consecutive policy 
renewals for not less than three (3) years from the date of completion of the Project 
which is subject of this Agreement or, if such renewals are unavailable, (ii) the 
purchase of a tail/extended reporting period for not less than three (3) years from the 
date of completion of the Project which is the subject of this Agreement.    

  
2. Evidence and Cancellation of Insurance  

1. Upon execution of the Agreement, and within thirty (30) days of request by the 
County, Grant Recipient shall furnish the County certificates of insurance and 
endorsements certifying the issuance of all insurance required by this Agreement.  All 
evidence of insurance shall be signed by a properly authorized officer, agent, general 
agent, or qualified representative to the insurer(s), shall certify the name of the 
insured(s), the type and amount of insurance, the location and operations to which the 
insurance applies, the inception and expiration dates, shall specify the form numbers 
of any endorsements issued to satisfy this Agreement�s insurance requirements, and 
shall state that the County shall receive notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
effective date of any cancellation, lapse, or material change in the policy(s).  Similar 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
documentation confirming renewal of required insurance shall be provided on each 
insurance renewal date.  
2. The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including all endorsements and riders, which may be redacted of 
any confidential or proprietary information.  Grant Recipient shall deliver such 
policies to the County within five (5) business days of County�s request.  
3. County�s receipt or acceptance of Grant Recipient�s or any Contractor�s evidence 
of insurance at any time without comment or objection, or County�s failure to request 
certified copies of such insurance, does not waive, alter, modify, or invalidate any of 
the insurance requirements set forth in this Exhibit D or, consequently, constitute the 
County�s acceptance of the adequacy of Grant Recipient�s or any Contractor�s 
insurance or preclude or prevent any action by County against Grant Recipient for 
breach of the requirements of this section.  

  
3. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance  

  
1. Grant Recipient shall maintain the following types of insurance and minimum 
insurance limits:  

1. Commercial General Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
in the aggregate for bodily injury, personal and advertising injury, and property 
damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad as that afforded under ISO form 
number CG 00 01.  Such insurance shall include coverage for, but not limited to 
premises liability, products and completed operations, ongoing operations, and 
contractual liability.  Limits may be satisfied by a single primary limit or by a 
combination of separate primary and umbrella or excess liability policies, 
provided that coverage under the latter shall be at least as broad as that afforded 
under the primary policy and satisfy all other requirements applicable to liability 
insurance including but not limited to additional insured status for the County.  

2.    Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions):  Grant Recipient or its 
Contractor(s) shall procure and maintain Professional Liability (Errors and 
Omissions) insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per claim and in the 
aggregate.  

  
3. Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as that 
afforded under ISO form number CA 00 01 covering BUSINESS AUTO 
COVERAGE, symbol 1 �any auto�; or the combination of symbols 2, 8, and 9. 
Limits may be satisfied by a single primary limit or by a combination of separate 
primary and umbrella or excess liability policies, provided that coverage under the 
latter shall be at least as broad as that afforded under the primary policy.   

  
4. Workers Compensation:  Workers Compensation coverage, as required by 
the Industrial Insurance Act of the State of Washington, as well as any similar 
coverage required for this Project by applicable Federal or �Other States� State 
Law.  



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
  

5. Employers Liability or �Stop Gap� coverage:  $1,000,000 each occurrence 
and shall be at least as broad as the protection provided by the Workers 
Compensation policy Part 2 (Employers Liability), or, in monopolistic states 
including but not limited to Washington, the protection provided by the �Stop 
Gap� endorsement to the commercial general liability policy.  

  
4. Other Insurance Provisions and Requirements  

1. All insurance policies purchased and maintained by Grant Recipient and any 
Contractor required in this Agreement shall contain, or be endorsed to contain the 
following provisions:  

1. With respect to all liability policies except Professional Liability (Errors 
and Omissions) and Workers Compensation:  

1. King County, its officials, employees and agents shall be covered as 
additional insured for full coverage and policy limits as respects liability 
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Grant Recipient, its 
agents, representatives, employees, or Contractor(s) in connection with this 
Agreement.  Additional Insured status shall include products-completed 
operations CG 20 100 11/85 or its substantive equivalent.  The County 
requires the endorsement(s) to complete the Agreement. If Grant Recipient 
participates in an insurance or risk management pool that does not allow for 
the County to be named as additional insured, this requirement does not apply 
to the policy(s) insured through the insurance or risk management pool.  

2. With respect to all liability policies (except Workers Compensation):  
1. Coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the County, its officials, 
employees and agents.  Any insurance and/or self-insurance maintained by the 
County, its officials, employees or agents shall not contribute with any Grant 
Recipient�s, or Contractor(s) insurance or benefit the Grant Recipient, or any 
Contractor, or their respective insurers in any way.  
2. Insurance shall expressly state that it applies separately to each insured 
and additional insured against whom a claim is made and/or lawsuit is 
brought, except with respect to the limits of insurer�s liability.  
 

3.  
  

5. Waiver of Subrogation  
1. Grant Recipient, its Contractor(s), and their respective insurance carriers release 
and waive all rights of subrogation against King County, its officials, agents and 
employees for damages caused by fire or other perils which can be insured by a 
property insurance policy.  This provision shall be valid and enforceable only to the 
extent permissible by the applicable property insurance policies.  

  
6. Deductibles/Self-Insured Retentions  

1. Any deductible and/or self-insured retention of the policies shall not in any way 
limit the County�s right to coverage under the required insurance, or to Grant 
Recipient�s, or any Contractor�s liability to the County, and shall in all instances be 



Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District � MRP Aquatic Feasibility Study � 6328641 
 

 
the sole responsibility of Grant Recipient or its Contractor, even if no claim has been 
made or asserted against them.  

  
7. Acceptability of Insurers  

1. Unless otherwise approved by the County, insurance is to be placed with insurers 
with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VIII.  
2. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) insurance may be placed with 
insurers with an A.M. Best rating of no less than B+:VII.  
3. If at any time any of the foregoing policies fail to meet the above stated 
requirements, Grant Recipient shall, upon notice to that effect from the County, 
promptly obtain a new policy, and shall submit the same to the County, with the 
appropriate certificates and endorsements, for review.  

  
8. Self-Insurance  

1. If the Grant Recipient is a governmental entity or municipal corporation, Grant 
Recipient may maintain a fully funded self-insurance program or participate in an 
insurance pool for the protection and handling of its liabilities including injuries to 
persons and damage to property.  

  
9. Contractors   

1. Grant Recipient shall include all Contractors as insureds under its policies or, 
alternatively, Grant Recipient must require each of its Contractors to procure and 
maintain appropriate and reasonable insurance coverage and insurance limits to cover 
each of the Contractor�s liabilities given the scope of work and services being 
provided herein.  To the extent reasonably commercially available, insurance 
maintained by any Contractor must comply with the specified requirements of this 
Exhibit D, including the requirement that all liability insurance policies (except 
Professional Liability and Workers Compensation) provided by the Contractor(s) 
must include the County, its officials, agents and employees as additional insured for 
full coverage and policy limits.  Grant Recipient is obligated to require and verify that 
each Contractor(s) to maintain the required insurance and ensure the County is 
included as additional insured.  Upon request by the County, and within five (5) 
business days, Grant Recipient must provide evidence of each Contractor(s) insurance 
coverage, including endorsements.    

  
10. Work Site Safety  

1. Grant Recipient shall have the �right to control� and bear the sole responsibility 
for the job site conditions, and job site safety.  Grant Recipient shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local safety regulations governing the job site, 
employees, and Contractors. 







ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, King County-Department of 16 (we, us or Company) may be required by law 
to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and 
conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign 
system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this 
information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature 
Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-

system. 

 
Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 
electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 
to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 
elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 
(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 
send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 
$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 
procedure described below. 

 
Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 
electronically is described below. 

 
Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 
receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 
from us. 

 
All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 
electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 
available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 
inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 
electronically from us. 

 
How to contact King County-Department of 16:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 
To contact us by email send messages to: cipriano.dacanay@kingcounty.gov 

 
To advise King County-Department of 16 of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us 
at cipriano.dacanay@kingcounty.gov and in the body of such request you must state: your 
previous email address, your new email address.  We do not require any other information from 
you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 
account preferences.  

 
To request paper copies from King County-Department of 16  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 
by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to cipriano.dacanay@kingcounty.gov and 
in the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 
telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 
To withdraw your consent with King County-Department of 16  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 
format you may: 



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 
select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to cipriano.dacanay@kingcounty.gov and in the body of such request you 
must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any 
other information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing 
consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 
Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 
current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-
signing-system-requirements.  

 
Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 
read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 
your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 
where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 
if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 
herein, then select the check-

 

By selecting the check-
that: 

You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 
You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 
this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 
reference and access; and 
Until or unless you notify King County-Department of 16 as described above, you 
consent to receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, 
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided 
or made available to you by King County-Department of 16 during the course of your 
relationship with King County-Department of 16. 




